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Newark Board of Education

OFFICE OF SCHOOL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR Where Passion Meets Progress
Valerie V. Wilson, RSBO, QPA » CFO/School Business Administrator

Superintendent

March 1, 2022

Honorable President and Members of the
Newark Board of Education

765 Broad Street

Newark, New Jersey 07102

Dear Board Members and Constituents:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Newark Board of Education of the City of
Newark (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the District. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented
in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly
the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund at
June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the
year then ended. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's
financial activities have been included.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to
complement management's discussion and analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the
District's organizational chart, and a roster of officials, and a list of professionals. The financial section
includes management's discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information, and other supplementary information, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical
section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the
New Jersey State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Information related to this single audit, including the independent
auditors' report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based
on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
an independent auditors' report on compliance for each major Federal and State program and on internal
control over compliance required by the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey Circular 15-08 are included
in the single audit section of this report.
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1. Reporting Entity and Its Services

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). All funds and the Government-wide financial statements of the
District are included in this year's report. The District and all its schools constitute the District's reporting
entity and do not have any component units and are not considered a component unit of any other
governmental unit.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12.
These include regular, vocational, as well as special education services to students with physical and/or
mental disabilities. The District has a resident student enrollment of approximately 48,871 students. This
figure includes District students requiring out of District placements and students attending charter and
community-based preschools. The following table details changes in average daily enrollment in District
schools over the last five years and the projection for the one subsequent year.

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enrollment* Change
2021-22 37,572 1.4%
2020-21 37,066 (.35%)
2019-20 37,197 0.2%
2018-19 37,129 2.00
2017-18 36,401 0.18
2016-17 35,964 (0.21)

*Not including District students requiring out of District placements and students attending charter and
community-based preschools.

FY 2021-22 is the projected average daily enrollments.
2. Economic Condition and Qutlook
Economic Condition:

The City of Newark is the largest city in the State of New Jersey, with a population of more than 281,000.
It serves as the county seat for Essex, with County, State, and Federal Courts attracting a large number
of law firms to the central business district.

Newark's major industries include insurance, air transportation, communications, health care, and higher
education. It is home to Port Newark, the largest port on the East Coast and the third-largest port in the
country.

Additionally, Newark is the insurance, finance, and banking capital of the State. Headquartered in
Newark are a number of large financial institutions, including the Prudential Insurance Company and
Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey, as well as the State's largest public utility company, Public
Service Electric, and Gas. Newark is the site of the Rutgers New Jersey Medical School, the New Jersey
Institute of Technology, the Newark campus of Rutgers University, Seton Hall Law School, Berkley
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College, and Essex County College. Spanning over 320 acres, these five colleges serve a population of
approximately 50,000 students and faculty.

Economic Qutlook:

The economic outlook for the City of Newark remains uncertain due to the continuing impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, increases in unemployment, and the loss of revenue for local businesses due to
declines in non-local visitors. As of May 2021, Newark’s unemployment rate of 19 percent was nearly
double the national average of 10.7 percent, resulting in a $60-100 Million loss in consumer spending
that would otherwise have gone to Newark businesses. That said, Mayor Ras Baraka and Newark’s team
of community-oriented city planners remain committed to equitable and sustainable growth.

In January 2021, the City of Newark reached out to internal and external partners to develop a City
action plan to drive an equitable economic recovery. The goal of the $8.8 million plan is to build a better
future for Newark — a stronger, more equitable, and more resilient city based on good jobs, equitable
development, the growth of small businesses, and investment in Newark’s neighborhoods. The plan will
leverage mostly federal funds to fast-track and build more commercial and residential space, including
a five-year affordable housing goal, a goal for more affordable and greater access to fiber and broadband,
and “NewarkGo,” a low-cost transportation pilot using dockless bikes and e-scooters. While 14 percent
of jobs lost requiring a high school diploma or less are not likely to return, the plan will create an
education recovery gap for affected workers leading them into faster growth industries, including
transportation and warehousing, hospitality, and educational services.

In March 2021, Mayor Baraka announced “The Fairmount Commons redevelopment project,” referring
to it as a step forward in our equitable growth focus on neighborhoods that suffer from disinvestment
and have not yet benefitted from Newark’s ongoing revitalization.

Key features of the project include: Total investment of $60 million in the redevelopment area,
conversion of 42 vacant city-owned lots into predominantly affordable housing, three lots adjacent to
West Side High and South Orange Avenue to be used as public park space, enhancing community
interaction and walkability within the area, and additional ground-level retail space along 13" Avenue
and 11" Street.

Additionally, The New Jersey Performing Arts Center (NJPAC) will break ground in 2022 on its master
plan to expand the arts and education district surrounding its theaters. The approximately $150 million
projects will create a vibrant new neighborhood of low-rise and high-rise multifamily buildings, retail
establishments, restaurants, and cultural spaces, plus about 15 new townhomes and condos, on a portion
of the 7.3 acres of developable land on NJPAC’s riverfront campus. This phase will include a total of
roughly 350 rental residences (80% market rate, 20% affordable) that will be erected on the site, in
addition to the condos and townhomes, which will be offered for sale.
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Age of School Buildings:

The average age of our buildings is 82.46 years old. We have incorporated a list of our buildings that
show the year they were built.

Building Name Year Built
Abington Avenue ‘ ' o 1900
* Alexander Street School 1896
American History High (Mbntgomery) o 1910
e sireat S 501
Arlington Avenue / Ridge ECC 1924
Arts High 1930
Avon Academy . i 1903
Bard Early College / Camden Middle | 1973
Barringer High School o - - 1897
Belmont Runyon : 2004
Benjamin Franidin B ‘ (359

* Boylan Street | 1929
*Bragaw Avenue 1928
Branch Brook/ECC North 1924
Bruce Street / George Washington Carver 1979
Camden Street T 1968
Central High S . e o T a—
Chancellor Avenue j 1930
Cleveland o 1912
Dr.E. Alma Flagg 1984

. * Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. ‘ 1872
Dr. William H. Horton 1894
Eagle Academy 1932
Early CC Central / Samuel L. Berliner : 1972

- Early CC South / Chancellor Avenue Annex - “ 1959

' East Side High - ' . 1911

- East Ward Elementary (Formerly South Street) R 1869

“Elliott Street 2015

*TFifteenth Avenue School - 1894
First Avenue i 2007
Fourteenth Ave. (Formerly ECC West/Old Speedway) 2010
Harold Wilson ' 1983
Harriet Tubman . 1888
Hawkins Street - ” o T 1887
vl hva SO - 1508
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Ivy Hill 1931
John F. Kennedy 1967
Lafayette Street 1848
Lincoln 1908
Louise A. Spencer 1976
Luis Munoz Marin 1955
* Madison Avenue School 1904
Malcolm X Shabazz 1913
McKinley 1915
Michelle Obama Elementary (Formerly Fourteenth Avenue) 1906
Mount Vernon o o ' 1955
New Jersey Regional Day 1984
Newark School of Global Studies (Formerly Early CC North/Gladys H. Jones) 1911
Newark Vocational 1957
Oliver Street 2016
Park Elementary 2009
. Peshine Academy 1911
Quitman Street 1963
Rafael Hernandez 1995
Ridge Street 1924
Roberto Clemente 1884
Salome Urena (Formerly North 10" Street Elem) 1964
Science Park High 2006
Sir Isaac Newton (Formerly Newton Strééf) o 1866
South Seventeenth Street 1911
South Street 2018
Sussex Avenue 1900
Technology High 1912
Thirteenth Avenue 1971
University High 1956
West Side Campus 1926
‘Wilson Avenue 1881

* = Charter

3. Teaching & Learning:

The Office of Teaching and Learning understands improvement in students’ academic proficiency and
wellness as interrelated goals that represent our core mission. To that end, the work with school leaders
helps to ensure that NPS students are on track to graduate high school with the requisite experiences,
knowledge, and skills to thrive in college, careers, and life. Attention to the instructional core remains a

central tenet of the office.
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NPS continues to implement the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NJSLS) and does so now with
leaders in 12 academic offices. Highlights from the last year include the successful development of 80
new curricula and new coursework to support three new high schools: Newark School of Fashion and
Design, Newark School of Global Studies, and Newark School of Data Science and Informational
Technology. Additionally, we have staffed a new Adult Education Office and an Educational
Technology Office with directors. Additionally, we have partnered with the Center for Talented Youth
at John Hopkins to begin a three-year process of refining the Gifted and Talented programs we offer and
to deepen administrator, teacher, and parent knowledge of giftedness.

The directors from the offices within Teaching and Learning have led initiatives to improve learning by
reshaping PLCs so that teacher communities name problems of practice and design methods to address
those problems. Analysis of data, naming a problem of practice, and engaging in teaching sprints
(Breakspeare, 2021) are helping to refine the teaching practices.

Of great importance this year are four shifts introduced to all school leaders. These shifts represent
important changes that school leaders need to make in order to create positive academic changes across
the District. These shifts are:

e Key shift #1: from supporting learners through interventions to focusing on strengthening the
instructional core through the curriculum.

o Key shift #2: from using data on the edges of our efforts to placing data at the core of the
improvement effort.

e Key shift #3: from having individual teachers design and deliver instruction to using a shared
curriculum to support daily teaching and learning.

e Key shift #4: continue the shift from using one-size-fits-all professional development models to
creating contexts for 21st-century adult learning.

These shifts represent a roadmap for realizing the ambitious academic goals in the District’s strategic
plan by first ensuring all students are provided with an excellent and cohesive curriculum. Next, changes
to that curriculum (creation of shared criteria) are made through teacher collaboration and analysis of
student learning. Staff is supported through job-embedded professional learning. These shifts are most
crucial. All of our learners can achieve well when curriculum, analysis, collective teacher efficacy, and
professional learning are present. These shifts will help elevate student achievement dramatically by
ensuring knowledge-building is happening every day in every classroom and teachers are supporting in
this important work.

English Language Arts:

Designing with classroom teachers rigorous, knowledge-building curricula is important work the Office
of English Language Arts has undertaken. This year, two new units of study that integrates ELA and
science have been created for kindergarten and grades 1 and 2. These new units serve as a primary way
to introduce students to important science content.

The Office of English Language Arts continues to value culturally responsive teaching and recognizes
the positive effects on student learning to elevate the capacity of students who have traditionally been
marginalized in education. To that end, collections of new literature units for grade 6-12 are being
developed. Understanding the importance of engagement and its tie to relevance, teachers are field
testing an African American Literature course and also designing a LatinX Literature course. New units
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of study featuring classic and contemporary texts are being developed across grades 6 through 12. All
of these new literature units provided opportunities for students to read and engage with culturally
relevant texts that affirm their backgrounds, identities, histories, and cultures. All units of study are
aligned to the New Jersey Student Learning Standards.

A primary responsibility of the five supervisors and teacher coach is to support the learning of the 41
ELA coaches in K-8 school and the 15 department chairpersons (DCs) at the secondary level. The team
works with coaches and DCs through onsite Professional Learning Communities (PLCs), co-observation
of instruction, and monthly professional development. There is an explicit focus on supporting school
leaders in the effective development of PLCs through research and evidence-based strategies that use
data to improve instruction.

Mathematics:

High quality, engaging mathematics instruction is critical to build students as flexible, resourceful
problem solvers. To that end, the Office of Mathematics focused on instruction and curricula to develop
teachers in their instructional practice to think and ultimately teach differently. Through a robust array
of professional development opportunities for teachers, math coaches, and school leaders, educators at
all levels, all are equipped with the knowledge and strategies to lead this change process.

Monthly professional development sessions were offered for school-level support (math coaches) and
building leadership (mathematics department chairpersons and principals). These sessions focused on
understanding students' thinking, developing and coaching teachers, and building students'
representations of mathematics. In addition, the Office of Mathematics offered weekly, one-hour
sessions for classroom teachers. These sessions focused on unit overviews from curriculum guides with
emphases on students' conceptual understanding and resources for student engagement. Sessions are
divided into two parts: first, the Summaries of Key Learnings are reviewed and, second, teachers and
coaches have an opportunity to engage in a question-and-answer session.

The Office of Mathematics has formed a partnership with Rutgers University-Newark and is engaging
in a project that raises students' mathematical enjoyment and performance. This project—Teaching for
Conceptual Understanding of Mathematics in Grades 3 and 4 (TCM3-4)—is a two-year effort to support
the professional learning about foundational mathematical literacies for grades 3 and 4. Ten coaches
were chosen alongside 45 teachers of grades 2, 3, and 4. TCM3-4 builds coaches' capacity to enhance
teachers' knowledge about four mathematics content modules, each aligned with the curriculum of the
Newark Board of Education and the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NJSLS). The content
modules include topics such as multiplication and division of whole numbers, fractions, comparing
fractions, identifying equivalent fractions, proportional reasoning, as well as adding and subtracting
fractions. In each module, participants will engage cross-cutting pedagogical processes such as the
Mathematical Practices of the NJSLS, the 4A-Instructional Model (Powell, 2018), as well as visual and
tangible manipulative tools such as Cuisenaire rods. For each content module, the participant will create
related sequences of tasks for lessons and instructional YouTube videos to implement in a project
practicum with 3rd- and 4th-grade students. These practicum sessions occur in afterschool programs.
During the practicum, after receiving constructive feedback, participants will revise their mathematical
tasks and videos. These revised materials will subsequently be available for use by participants and their
colleagues in future settings of professional enhancement and classroom instruction in remote or face-
to-face learning formats.
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The Office of Mathematics has formed a partnership with EF+ Math. This 5-year partnership (grades 3
through 8) funded by the New Schools Venture Fund aims to improve student outcomes in mathematics
by targeting students’ executive functions, which include attention, memory, and thought management.
This design funds educators, researchers, and developers to work side by side to co-design bold
approaches for mathematics learning that build executive function skills using conceptual understanding
and complex problem-solving.

Mathematics is a platform upon which many other academic pursuits depend; therefore, the design of
curricula and the mathematics program are critical. Our mathematics curriculum documents guide both
the implementation of the National Council of Teachers of Mathematics Standards and the New Jersey
Student Learning Standards in Mathematics. Last year this redesign process included grades 6-8, Pre-
Calculus, Calculus, and Probability and Statistics. In the summer of 2021, the redesign process included
grades K-5, Algebra I and II, Geometry, Financial Algebra, Math Applications, Discrete Mathematics,
and Linear Algebra. To support the new curriculum, new textbooks were adopted in August 2021 for
the high school elective courses: Financial Algebra, Math Applications, Discrete Mathematics, and
Linear Algebra. The entire K-12 system in mathematics has been revised and updated with only
PreKindergarten remaining. PreKindergarten work is currently underway in collaboration with the
Office of Early Childhood.

Financial Algebra is a yearlong course designed to deepen students’ understanding of the applications
of advanced algebra as well as applications from statistics, probability, and discrete mathematics in the
contexts of personal finance and business finance. Among other mathematical constructs, students use
linear, quadratic, exponential, and piecewise functions to model real-world financial contexts, employ
hypothesis testing, and investigate amortization, supply and demand, revenue and profit functions to
make informed financial decisions.

The Math Applications curriculum focuses on problem solving as good problem-solving skills don't
necessarily come naturally, but can be taught. Students need lots of opportunities to practice
problem-solving strategies. Then they need to learn how to choose an appropriate strategy to solve a
given problem. This course is designed to give students a firm problem-solving foundation. It also
teaches them to think and work together, present solutions orally to the whole class, and write up detailed
solutions. In other words, it helps to prepare students for life. Students learn problem-solving strategies--
such as analyzing units, making systematic lists, and evaluating finite differences--and their various
substrategies. By the end of the course, students will have learned more than twenty problem-solving
strategies and substrategies. For each strategy, students learn real-world examples of its utility. Students
engage in problems across multiple contexts in which they may employ the strategy. Many problems
reappear throughout the course in order to demonstrate multiple approaches to the same problem. It is
important that students learn that there are often many ways of solving a problem. This course
emphasizes process more than answer. The journey is more interesting than the destination. Problem
solving develops better when students must determine their own direction.

Discrete Mathematics is the study of mathematical concepts for which the objects of study are discrete,
as opposed to continuous. Such ideas have particular importance for both computer science and
engineering. This course emphasizes the foundation of mathematical understanding and logical
reasoning. Topics include set theory, voting and apportionment, logic, number theory, graphs and
networks, combinatorics, cryptography, and game theory.
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Linear Algebra is an advanced mathematics course that focuses on the study of linear systems of
equations, vector spaces, and linear transformations. The curriculum maintains a strong geometric
emphasis, with each major concept illuminated using a geometric interpretation. The use of linear
transformations as a "thread” that is woven into the fabric of the curriculum enhances the geometric
empbhasis. The curriculum includes a broad selection of applications that illustrate the power of linear
algebra to explain fundamental principles and simplify calculations in engineering, computer science,
mathematics, physics, biology, economics, and statistics. Each curricular unit opens with an introductory
vignette that sets the stage for some application of linear algebra and provides a motivation for
developing the mathematics that follows.

Science:

The Office of Science has continued its efforts to realize the vision for science education set forth in 4
Framework for K-12 Science Education and the (New Jersey Student Learning Standards for Science
(NJSLS-S)) through the provision of quality core curricular resources, professional development, and
partnerships that center around knowledge-building and students learning Science through authentic and
engaging experiences.

In the spring of 2020, the Office of Science facilitated a high school curricular resource review that
resulted in the adoption of a new, standards-aligned resource for biology (/nspire Biology), chemistry
(Inspire Chemistry), and physics (Inspire Physics). Subsequently, curriculum in biology, chemistry, and
physics was re-written in the summer of 2020. In the summer of 2021, curricula were written in the
elective courses of Anatomy and Physiology, Earth Science, Environmental Science, and Forensic
Science. These curricula were designed to incorporate specific daily instructional tasks, all aligned to
targeted learning intentions and success criteria. The Forensic Science Initiative, in partnership with
NJIT, is a dual enrollment opportunity for senior students.

The District just completed year four (4) of implementation of Investigating and Questioning our World
Through Science and Technology (IQWST) for grades six (6) through eight (8). Curricula for grades
six, seven, and eight have been updated as of September of 2021. Middle school teacher leaders
participated in intensive professional development in July of 2021. They have begun to turnkey their
learning on phenomenon-driven instruction and 3-dimensional tasks to middle school science teachers
on district wide staff development days.

Newark's K-5 science program, Inspire Science, has been implemented for the past three (3) years.
Curricula for kindergarten, and grades one, two, three, four, and five have been updated as of September
of 2021. ELA and Science integrated units of study will be incorporated in grades K-2.

The introduction of MAP testing in Science to students in grades 4-11 will allow teachers and
administrators to identify gaps in students' learning and differentiate instruction based on each student's
starting point in the goal areas of Life Science, Physical Science, and Earth and Space Science.

Mystery Science, Discovery Education, Legends of Learning, and Gizmos serve as standards-aligned
supplemental resources. Teachers have access to engaging videos, relevant readings, and modified lab
experiences via these resources.

In addition to major advancements in curriculum, strategic partnerships continue to further advance the
vision for science education within the Newark Board of Education. Specifically:
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® Students2Science. In 2016, this brought the launch of this new partnership that puts students at
the center of scientific learning and in the role of young scientists. Through virtual lab sessions
(5-12) and in-person visits (8-12) to a state-of-the-art lab facility at the Newark Board of
Education, students are presented with questions and problems that they must answer or solve
through experimentation and the use of critical thinking and problem solving skills.

e Yogi Berra Museum and Learning Center. All fourth graders in the District have the
opportunity to experience on the intersection of physics and sports.

Social Studies:

Through a curriculum grounded in inquiry-based education as outlined by the National Council of Social
Studies, we are developing students to be critically thinking, active, global citizens.

In grades K-5, we have created culturally relevant interdisciplinary ELA and Social Studies units of
study. Through these units, we are developing the core skills of the historian-critical thing and
questioning. In these units of study, students are engaging economic concepts, discussing civic
obligation and participation, exploring geography as a factor for human movement, and tackling hard
history.

In grades 6-12, we have created new curricula that develops historical understanding through historical
thinking. During Summer of 2021, thirty teachers and twelve administrators from across the all wards
created over 60 inquiry-based social studies units. The inquiry-based education model is grounded in
the tenets of historical thinking: comprehension, chronological thinking, analysis and interpretation,
critical thinking and reading skills, research skills, and decision-making across historical issues. Physical
and human geography rest in this work alongside the use of technology to help students construct
knowledge and develop deep learning.

Our curriculum is aligned to 2020 New Jersey Social Studies Standards, and legislation on inclusiveness,
such as Amistad and Disability. In addition, grades 6, 7, and 8, we have cornerstone units that are
designed to meet civics and financial literacy mandates of the State.

To support our goal of developing critically thinking, active, global citizens, we are sourcing robust
resources and partnerships with expansive capabilities. We have partnered with HMH for the core texts
for grades 6 through 11. Newsela Social Studies Extended for Social Studies will allow us to tailor
supporting, current, and relevant content for teacher facilitation of learning. The New York Federal
Reserve Education Qutreach Program is eager to assist in providing support for the internal-led rewrite
of the Economic and Financial Literacy courses for high school.

We have been providing and will continue to provide professional development (PD) for teachers and
administrators on the best practices for social studies education. A highly skilled teaching corps is
necessary for a groundbreaking transformative approach to social studies education in Newark. Thus,
PD, alongside class visits with pointed feedback for teachers and coaching for administrators, is
necessary.

10
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In the three-year Social Studies Department plan, the development of the first standardized social studies
growth assessment will roll out. In partnership with a testing firm, teachers will be provided the training
to help write the growth assessments. This training will also benefit in the development of improved in-
course summative assessments.

The Arts:

With the recent release of the first ever Newark Public Schools Arts Education Landscape Baseline
Report 2019-2020, the Office of Visual and Performing Arts have begun the work identified under
benchmarks and goals included in the report and resulting from the collected data.

To date new curricula have been implemented for grades PK-8 music using the newly adopted New
Jersey Student Learning Standards for Visual and Performing Arts. Grades PK-5 students take General
Music and units of study are designed with an individual focus on each of the four artistic processes of
creating, performing, responding and connecting through music to ensure exposure at each grade level.
Grades PK-2 units are devised with a focus on communicating the elements of music through movement,
performance, and discussion and sequentially progressing students towards generating and performing
music using the pentatonic scale and simple duple and triple meters. Students in grades 3-5 progressively
deepen their understanding of the elements of music including dynamics, tempo, articulation and
harmony through musical performance of selected works, responding to works of music, creating works
of music with intent, and making connections to music through personal experiences.

Grades 6-8 students take Music Ensemble. Units of study integrate the use of the four artistic processes
as students use the elements of music moving from ensemble foundations, growing as a musician,
arranging and composing music, and preparations for solo performances.

New curricula have also been implemented in grades PK-2 Theatre. Each grade level has four focused
units of study designed for each of the four artistic processes. Areas of attention include: an actor's
vocabulary; the actor's tools (voice, body and imagination); active listening; responding and connecting
to culturally relevant works of art through storytelling or process drama; and using their imagination as
well as thinking skills associated with acting. Students begin with creative play, storytelling, pantomime
and improvisation and progress to comparing and contrasting personal emotions with those of characters
in guided drama experiences, and analyzing and developing new endings to familiar literature.

To support our goal to establish and implement consistent PK-12 sequential ruts curriculum, instruction,
and assessments the Office of Visual and Performing Arts is in the process of refining new curricula for
PK-8 dance and visual art; while mapping out high school proficient courses through advanced courses
in all four art forms. A focus of the curricula work is to view arts education through a lens of developing
student creative capacities and the use of artistic practices, so students value and internalize them as
dispositions relevant to 21st-century preparation for college, career, and life. Units of learning will
continue to be developed to facilitate culturally responsive teaching and social-emotional learning as
embedded practice.

The Office of Visual & Performing Arts is comprised of a director and one supervisor that support the
work of over 225 visual and performing arts teachers across 64 elementary and high schools.
District-wide professional development for all arts educators this year includes a series of sessions
focused on culturally and linguistically responsive teaching and learning to evaluate where arts
educators are on their journey to cultural responsiveness and to equip teachers with strategies to validate
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and affirm all students as they engage with arts learning. Arts educators have the opportunity to
communicate with art form specific peers across schools to deepen their understanding of new and
developing curricula.

District-wide community engagement with the arts is fostered through six distinct district-wide
performances and exhibitions where grade level teachers and students collaborate in the production of
art exhibits and performances. These include All City Middle School Music (grades 6-8), All City Dance
(grades 3-12), Teen Arts Annual (grades 9-12), Young Artists Annual (grades 6-8), NJPAC RAMP
(grades 3 and 4), and this year the addition of the All City Vocal Festival featuring high school vocal
students.

Our partnership with Save The Music Foundation has entered the fifth year with musical instrument or
music technology donations to 10 schools. The Renew the Arts initiative continues to provide a deeper
understanding of strengths, weaknesses, challenges, and opportunities at both the school and district
level and consider need requests from schools for teacher and student resources via the art office in
support of curricula goals.

Office of Student Life:

The Office of Student Life under the umbrella of Student Support Services is comprised of school
counselors, school social workers, and attendance counselors that work collaboratively to foster
relationships with educators to address the numerous factors which can contribute to a student becoming
at-risk at any level in their social emotional development and academic growth.

In support of the District's mission to afford the highest level of teaching and learning and build an
effective and efficient community of learning and character, the Office of Student Life has a cadre of
intervention and referral programs and services available to address the academic, social emotional, and
behavioral needs of students. In an effort to alleviate issues that could prevent or interfere with student
success these resources are provided to students and families:

Attendance & Truancy

Bullying Prevention

Community Partnerships & Collaboration
Community Resource Guide

Crisis Response Team

Foster Care & McKinney Vento

Mental Health

Mentoring Programs

Presentations & Workshops

Pre-College Programs

Small Groups

Social-Emotional Learning

Suicide Awareness

Student Assistance and Wraparound Services
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Early Childhood:

The Office of Early Childhood (OEC) provides a high-quality Pre-kindergarten program for children
ages three (3) to five (5) in Pre-k3 and Pre-k4 across the city of Newark. The Pre-kindergarten program
operates in both the Newark Board of Education's elementary school buildings as well as within
community-based preschool provider centers. The Newark Board of Education's Pre-kindergarten
program historically serves over 7,000 children in 34 District elementary schools, three (3) District Early
Childhood Schools that serve only Pre-k, and 53 community-based preschool provider centers. The
2021-2022 enrollment has been impacted by the current pandemic. The Newark Board of Education has
an annual goal of increasing Pre-kindergarten enrollment in hopes of eventually attaining 100%
participation of three (3)-five (5) year-olds in a high-quality education program prior to the start of
Kindergarten.

The Office of Early Childhood supports those 90 locations where Pre-kindergarten children are
educated. The OEC team provides technical assistance to teaching staff and school leaders through
professional development, instructional coaching, administration of program quality assessments and
other support to ensure every Pre-kindergarten classroom is delivering developmentally appropriate
lessons in a nurturing and safe learning environment that focuses on ensuring positive academic and
social-emotional outcomes for children. In the school year 2021-2022, the Newark Board of Education
will continue to implement its federal Head Start grant, which translates to augmented comprehensive
academic, social, health, and emotional services to 1,000 students and their families.

In addition to providing high-quality programming in the various sites, the Office of Early Childhood
also commits significant time and resources to engage the families of these youngest learners inclusive
of providing them with the tools to be partners with their children's schools and to establish strong habits
(beginning with consistent attendance) that will lead to success in school.

Bilingual/ESL Education:

Our District embraces and celebrates the uniqueness of over 6,000 English Language Learners (ELLSs).
Our learners speak more than 25 languages and come from over 55 countries. They bring with them a
wealth of knowledge and experience that we seek to identify and cultivate. Our office's mission centers
around cultivating the genius of each of our bilingual students while supporting their linguistic and
academic growth. Our vision is for all ELLs to graduate prepared for college and career success. This is
accomplished by providing access to a rigorous curriculum and an education that embraces their
languages, cultures, and diversity.

Our District provides language support to students through a transitional bilingual education program
(TBE) and English as a Second Language (ESL) classes. In our TBE classes, students receive instruction
in English and their native language in order to deepen content knowledge while learning English. ELLs
also receive a minimum of one period of ESL instruction per day. During ESL instruction, teachers
focus on furthering student's English language use. These two program models assisted student's
acquisition of English in all language domains: listening, speaking, reading, and writing.

We continue to coordinate our work with that of offices within the Teaching and Learning team to

provide aligned support to schools. Our work focuses on helping teachers improve instructional practice
in order to support student learning and outcomes. We maintain afterschool and summer language
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enrichment programs for our ELL and immigrant students. We also continue to refine our support of
students with limited or interrupted schooling by providing ongoing teacher training.

Extended Learning Time

The Office of Extended Leaming Time (OELT) oversees the administration and implementation of the
District's afterschool and summer programs, initiatives, and activities. During summer 2021, Summer
Plus returned to in-person instruction, providing daily academic offerings in mathematics, literacy, and
SEL alongside enrichment programs in the arts, stem, and physical activities for approximately 3,000
students.

October marked the return to in-person after-school elementary programming at 41 district locations,
including the addition of kindergarten students in our Excel program. More than 5,000 students in grades
kindergarten through grade 8 are enrolled in Excel, which runs from 3-5:30 pm.

Ensuring that Extended Learning builds off the powerful work being done in our district classrooms
every day starts with teachers. 240 teachers, 40 Lead Teachers, and 10 Program Monitors have received
professional development on implementing the instructional curriculum and following nutrition
guidelines.

Along with enjoying daily nutritious meals and snacks, students in the Excel program engage in rigorous
mathematics and ELA instruction, coupled with a wide variety of enrichment activities. Enrichment
curriculum is selected in alignment with student interests, but also to provide previews for the CTE
offerings showcased in our high schools. Students participate in chess, yoga, sports clinics, arts
intensives, STEM and coding challenges.

While the Dr. Marion A. Bolden Student Center is temporarily closed to students, OELT ensures virtual
opportunities for high schoolers to receive College and career readiness support, assistance with college
applications and essays, SAT prep courses and virtual college visits. OELT has also teamed with the
Office of Student Services to provide one-on-one counseling to help parents complete FAFSA
applications, and to help seniors meet graduation requirements.

To support district-wide tutoring in all elementary and high schools, OELT has provided the structure
and guidance for developing tutorials that accelerate, rather than remediate, student learning. Tutorials
focus on selected skills that are relevant to current classroom instruction, determined through
collaboration with the classroom teacher. The goal is for the student to learn on time with their peers.

As the office responsible for the nutrition program for all NPS elementary and high school after school
and Saturday programs, including sponsorship for several community agencies, the OELT provides over
37,000 weekly meals.

Instructional Technology:

The Newark Board of Education continues to invest in both educational technologies for the classroom
and teacher professional development. The last several years has focused on providing regular
opportunities for Kindergarten to 12%-grade students to learn computational thinking and programming
through structured computer science classes and lessons. All District high schools offer Computer
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Science courses aligned to the New Jersey Student Learning Standards for Computer Science and
Design Thinking.

From an instructional perspective, the Board continues to invest in instructional platforms that align
with our curriculum and provide students with authentic experiences using technology. We have placed
an emphasis on reviewing our instructional platforms and their usage to ensure we support the ones that
directly impact student learning while removing platforms that do not align with instructional goals.
Professional development opportunities focusing on how to use the platforms with specific instructional
strategies remain a primary focus. This development has been done through virtual sessions and online
recorded professional development, with all educators having access to a library of sessions to assist
them as needed.

Students are offered extra-curricular opportunities to engage with technology and computer science
through the Board's robotics program as well as through collaboration with Girls Who Code. In 2021-
2022, we anticipate participation in the FIRST Robotics League of more than 600 students throughout
the District. We continue to expand the number of teams participating and are focusing on middle school
participation so we can expose these students to the exciting opportunities available in STEM careers.
The District is also supporting school-based clubs with Girls Who Code. These clubs have focused on
increasing the number of students in underserved populations being exposed to computer science in a
meaningful and hands-on program. Finally, we have introduced a summer enrichment program for
students to attend that introduces them to a myriad of technology-based areas, including robotics,
coding, and creation through art, music, and Minecraft. We plan to further expand this program as we
continue to find ways to ensure all students are able to participate in these programs that help develop
computational thinking, problem-solving, and connections to the real world.

4. Accounting System and Reports

The District's financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds, and a
government-wide presentation is also included. These funds and government-wide statements are
explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements," Note 1.

5. Financial Reporting

The District was awarded the Association of School Business Officials International’s (ASBO)
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Award (COE) for excellence in the preparation and
issuance of our fiscal year-end 2020 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). This was the
sixteenth consecutive year that the Certificate of Excellence was awarded to the District. A copy of the
Certificate of the Excellence in Financial Reporting Award has been included in our 2021 ACFR.

The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Program was designed by ASBO International to
enable school business officials to achieve a high standard of financial reporting. The award, the highest
recognition for school district financial operations offered by ASBO, is only conferred to school systems
that have met or exceed the standards of the program. By preparing and presenting ACFR, the District
has validated the credibility of its school system's operations, measured the integrity and technical
competence of the business staff, assisted in strengthening our presentations for bond requests, and
provided professional recognition. The Certificate is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
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that our current annual comprehensive finaricial report continues to meet the Programs' requirements,
and we are submitting it to ASBO to determine its eligibility for the fiscal year 2020/2021 certificate.

The District also was awarded the Meritorious Budget Award by ASBO International, recognizing
excellence in school budget presentation.

6. Qther Information

Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Wiss & Company, LLP, was appointed by
the District. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter OMB
15-08. The auditors' report on the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and
the other supplementary information are included in the financial report. The auditors' reports related
specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

7. Acknowledgments

The District would like to thank and acknowledge the members of the School Board and District staff
for their hard work and dedication in providing quality education, setting high academic standards, high
expectations, and equal access to programs that provide and motivate a variety of interests and abilities
for every student based on his or her needs. The District would also like to thank the students, parents,
and Newark Community for their continued support and belief that we will improve the quality of
education for every child in every school throughout the entire District.
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A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board

Newark Board of Education

Newark, New Jersey

County of Essex

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of the Newark Board of Education, County of Essex, New Jersey (the
“District™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and requirements require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

WISS & COMPANY, LLP 22
14 Penn Plaza, Suite 1010 100 Campus Drive, Suite 400 5 Bartles Corner Road
New York, NY 10122 Florham Park, NJ 07932 Flemington, NJ 08822

212.594.8155 973.994.9400 908.782.7300



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the
District as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter — Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 24 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District
adopted new accounting guidelines, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities, which represents a change in accounting principle. As discussed in Note 24 to the financial
statements, as of July 1, 2020, the District’s government-wide financial statements net position and the fund
balances of the general fund and special revenue fund were retroactively adjusted to reflect the impact of the
change in accounting principle. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability-PERS,
schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of the net
OPERB liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios — (PERS
and TPAF) and budgetary comparison information as identified in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information such as the
school based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements, and the schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, respectively, and the other information, such as the
introductory and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The school-based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements and the schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the school-based
budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements and the schedules of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 1, 2022, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control

over financial reporting and compliance.

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Mu-« o
WISS & COMPANY, LLP

March 1, 2022
Florham Park, New Jersey
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Newark Board of Education
Newark, New Jersey

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

As management of the Newark Board of Education (“the District™), we offer readers of the
District’s financial statements this narrative discussion, overview, and analysis of the
financial activities of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented, in conjunction with additional information that
we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year
and the prior fiscal year is required to be presented in the MD&A.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic
financial statements. This document also contains required and other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources and liabilities of the District, with the difference
between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the District
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation and
sick leave).

The government-wide financial statements are included as schedules A-1 and A-2 of this
report.
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Fund financial statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue
fund and capital projects fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and special revenue
fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary
information for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with
this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are included as schedules B-1, B-2 and B-3
of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains two proprietary fund types, enterprise and
internal service. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The District uses enterprise
funds to account for the operations of its food service program and regional day school both
of which are considered to be major funds of the District. Internal service funds are used as
an accounting device to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the District’s various
functions. The District uses two internal service funds to account for services provided to all
the other funds of the District relating to self-insurance and its warehouse, both of which are
considered to be major funds of the District. The internal service funds have been included
within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary
funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements are included as schedules
B-4, B-5 and B-6 of this report.
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Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 46-95
of this report.

Required Supplementary Information (RSI). The District is required to present
certain supplementary information for its participation in the Public Employees’
Retirement System (“PERS”), Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (“TPAF”), the Board
of Education Employee’s Pension Fund of Essex County and Other Post Employee
Benefits (OPEB) related to PERS and TPAF. Schedules of the District’s proportionate
share of the PERS net pension liability, contributions made to this program, schedule of
the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability related to TPAF, schedule of
the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability Board of Education
Employee’s Pension Fund of Essex County, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB liability
and related ratios — PERS and TPAF are reported as required supplementary information
and can be found on pages 96-102 of this report and additional RSI related to the general
fund and special revenue fund budgetary comparisons is included on pages 103-122 of
this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with
governmental funds, enterprise funds and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements
and schedules can be found on pages 123-368 of this report.

Financial Highlights
Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $321,902,036 at the close of 2021.
The following table provides a summary of net position relating to the District’s
governmental and business-type activities at June 30, 2021 and 2020:
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Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets $ 140,301,307 $ 112,534,715 § 6,794,582 $ 5,559,249 § 147,095,889 $ 118,093,964
Capital assets, net 679,665,050 695,990,758 899,765 1,056,449 680,564,815 697,047,207
Total assets 819,966,357 808,525,473 7,694,347 6,615,698 827,660,704 815,141,171
Deferred outflow of resources 48,308,644 54,174,862 48,308.644 54,174,862
Liabilitics:

Other liabilities 142,335,297 132,429,434 961,320 1,374,107 143,296,617 133,803,541

Long term liabilities 298,616,132 322,457,138 298,616,132 322,457,138
Total liabilities 440,951,429 454,886,572 961,320 1,374,107 441,912,749 456,260,679
Deferred inflow of resources 105.421.536 98,572,986 105.421,536 98,572,986
Net position:
Net investment in

capital assets 663,257,713 678,922,633 899,765 1,056,449 664,157,478 679,979,082
Restricted 46,687,377 26,099,162 46,687,377 26,099,162
Unrestricted (deficit) (388,043,054)  (395,781,018) 5,833,262 4,185,142 (382,209.792) (391,595.876)
Total net position $ 321,902,036 $ 309,240,777 3 6,733,027 $ 5241,591 $§ 328635063 $ 314,482,368

The increase in current and other assets is related to the increase in cash which was the
result of increased revenues, specifically the increase to miscellaneous revenue, timing of
payments relating to accrued liabilities, and the inclusion of unemployment, scholarship
and student activities funds in governmental funds due to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 84.

The decrease in capital assets, net and the net position - net investment in capital assets is
mainly due to current year depreciation exceeding capital asset additions.

The largest portion of the District’s net position is its net investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, construction-in progress, buildings and improvements, and machinery,
equipment, and vehicles), net of depreciation and less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide
services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
An additional portion of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining (deficit) balance of
unrestricted net position reflects long-term obligations, such as compensated absences and
net pension liabilities, which are not offset by any assets.

The decreases in the deferred outflow of resources and long-term liabilities, as well as the
increase in the deferred inflow of resources, is primarily the result of the decrease in the
net pension liability and related inflows and outflows recorded on the full accrual
financial statements, recorded under Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.

The main reason for the increase in restricted net position is due to the District generating
more excess surplus in the current year, contributing more to the capital reserve funds and the
effects of GASB Statement No. 84.
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District activities. The key elements of the District’s changes in net position for the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Changes in Net Position
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 1380032 § 1331031 § 6397179 § 6230431 § 711731 § 7,561,462
Operating grants and contributions 164,921,257 15454241 11,4899 18,747,665 175,970,247 173,290,086
Capita] grants and contributions 1,342,770 914,720 1,342,770 914,720
General revenues:

Property taxes 138,314942 135,602,884 138,314,942 135,602,884
Federal and state aid not restricted to a

specific purpose 1,047972,862 946,944,086 1,047,972,862 946,944,086

Eamings on investments 123,265 1,924,685 223,265 1,924,685
Miscellaneous 18,679972 1,044,718 520,120 111,580 19,200,092 7,156,358
Total revenues 1,372,835,200 1,248,304,605 17,966,289 25,089,676 1,390801,489  1,273,394,281
Expenses:

Instructional services 581,529,997 490,262,754 581,529,997 490,262,754
Support services 502,893,700 518,165,671 502,893,700 518,165,671
Special Schools 3,161 416 3,908,501 3,161,416 3,908,901
Charter Schools 273,909,092 273,030,308 273,909,002 273,030,308
Interest on long-term debt 161,522 21,097 161,522 81,097
Business-Type Activities ) 21,894,619 29,522,677 21,894,619 29,522,617
Total expenses : 1,361,655,727 1,285,598.731 21,894,619 29,522,677 1,383.550,346  1,315,121,408
(Decrease) Increase in net position 11179473 (37294126) (3,928,330 (4,433,001) 7251,143 41,127,127)
Transfers (5,419,766) (4,705,000) 5,419,766 4,705,000 - -
Change in net position 5,759,707 (41,999,126) 1,491,436 271,999 7,251,143 41,127,127

Net position - beginning (retroactively adjusted - see Note 24) 316,142.329 351,239,903 5,241,591 4,969,592 321,383,920 356,209,495

Net position - ending § 3902036 § 309240777 § 673027 § 5241391 § 328635063 § 314,482,368

Capital grants and contributions increased approximately $428,000 or 46.80%, as a result
of the increase in state revenues based upon current year construction activity related to
New Jersey Schools Development Authority projects.

Federal and state aid increased approximately $34.3 million or 3.62%, as a result of new
federal and state aid awarded such as ESSER I, Coronavirus Relief Fund and Alyssa’s Law
Security Grant. Additionally, the state aid increased due to the increase in the on-behalf
payments made by the State on behalf of the District for pension and OPEB contributions.

Miscellaneous revenue increased approximated $12.08 million or 168.93%, as a result of an
increase in funding received from the City of Newark for local projects.

Earnings on investments decreased approximately $1.7 million or 88.4% as a result of the
falling interest rates on their bank accounts with several banks due to market conditions.

Under New Jersey reporting guidelines, many programs that could be considered
instructional programs are categorized under support services such as tuition paid for special
education students placed in private or regional day schools and library/media services.
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Health benefits, at the option of the District, paid on behalf of employees, including
instructional, may be charged under the support services category and not by program and
function code. :

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related matters.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. The fund balance is
divided between restricted balances and unassigned balances. The District has designated
portions of the unassigned fund balance to earmark resources for the payment of certain
government-wide liabilities that are not recognized in the governmental funds.

General Fund. The general fund is the main operating fund of the District. The total
unassigned fund balance deficit is ($21,227,443), while the total fund balance is
$23,099,066. P.L. 2003, c.97 provides that in the event state school aid payments are not
made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last state aid
payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school year. The bill
provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current
budget year. For governmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition should be symmetric, i.e. if one government recognizes as asset, the other
government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last two state aid
payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last two
state aid payments in its GAAP financial statements. Due to the timing differences of
recording the last two state aid payments, the General Fund balance and the Special
Revenue Fund (deficit) balance do not alone indicate that the District is facing financial
difficulties. In fact, if the last state aid payments were received as planned, the District
would not have a deficit in either the unassigned general fund or special revenue fund
total fund balance as the last state aid payments exceed the reported deficits.

Special Revenue Fund. The special revenue fund is used to track the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes,
other than debt service or capital projects. Revenues for the current year increased
approximately $10.8 million due to increases and new in local, state and federal grants,
specifically the new grants including ESSER I, Coronavirus relief fund, Alyssa’s law
security grant and increases in Supportive Schools grants. Expenditures for the current
year increased approximately $9.98 million mostly due to increased instruction costs
offset by decreases in support services and facilities acquisition and construction services
expenses.

Capital Projects Fund. The capital projects fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and
other assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds). There were expenditures of
$13,924,714 in the current fiscal year compared to expenditures of $8,756,225 in the
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prior year. This is mainly attributable to the increased construction work partially due to
the timing of jobs where in the prior fiscal year there was the delay in some projects at
the end of the current fiscal year due to restrictions from the COVID-19 pandemic. These
projects were completed in the current fiscal year.

The following schedule presents a summary of the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and the increases in relation to the prior
year. The Capital Projects Fund has been excluded as amounts vary substantially from year
to year.

Revenues
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Percent Increase Percent of
Revenue Amount of Total from 2020 Increase
Local sources $ 147,340,770 1240% $ 3,325,698 231 %
State sources 1,052,246,636 8230 34,018,590 334
Federal sources 78,135,414 5.30 16,855,993 21.51
Total $ 1,277,722,820 100.000 % $ 54,200,281 443 %

The increase in revenue from local sources of approximately $3.3 million is mainly the result
of a increase in the local tax levy offset by a decrease in interest on investments as a result of
market conditions.

The increase of approximately $34 million of state sources is attributable mainly to increased
Extraordinary Aid of approximately $2.3 million, General State Aid of approximately $16.9
million and an increase in On-behalf TPAF Pension and Medical of approximately $23.6
million. The increases are offset by decreases in expenditures of various state grant in the
current year, including a decrease of approximately $4.5 million in Preschool Education Aid.

The increase in federal revenues of approximately $16.9 million is mainly the result of the
District receiving COVID-19 pandemic related grants, most significantly the Elementary
and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (“ESSER”) and Coronavirus Relief Fund
(“CRF”) grants.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special Revenue Fund
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and the increases and decreases in
relation to the prior year. The Capital Projects Fund has been excluded as amounts vary
substantially from year to year.
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Expenditures

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Percent Increase (Decrease) Percent of

Expenditures Amount of Total From 2020 Increase (Decrease)
Current expenditures:
Direct Instruction $ 288,641,058 2265 % § 9,924,195 3.56 %
Support Services 706,376,926 55.44 21,723,843 3.17
Special schools 2,233,995 0.18 (777,921) (25.83)
Charter schools 273,909,092 21.50 878,784 0.32
Debt service:

Principal 2,614,172 0.21 25,278 0.98

Interest 399,185 0.03 (53,963) (11.91)
Total $ 1274174428 100.00% $ 31,475,886 253 %

The increase in direct instruction and support services is the result of the increase in the on-
behalf payments made by the State on behalf of the District for OPEB and pension related
expenses.

The net decrease in debt service is the result of decreases in the current year principal and
interest payments made pertaining to the energy savings improvement plan leases, as well as
principal payments on the other technology equipment capital lease.

The decrease in special schools is mainly attributable to the decrease in enrollment at
summer school.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes. The most significant
budgeted fund is the general fund. During the fiscal year, there were several differences
between the original budget and the final amended budget as a result of transfers being
applied to certain line items. These transfers were made between line items as part of the
normal process as permitted by State guidelines. Readers should refer to Section C of the
financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted amounts.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for those lines
where the modified budgeted amounts differ from the original budget by more than
$2,000,000 and 10%.

Revenues

e The modified budget for Equalization Aid decreased from the original budget by
approximately $36.3 million as a result of the revised state aid formula after the
District adopted the FY21 budget. As a result, the District approved a current year
transfer from unassigned fund balance of approximately $24.1 million and a
reduction in budget expenditures of approximately $12.2 million.

32



Expenditures

The modified budget for Other financing sources (uses) — Transfers out — food
service increased from the original budgeted amounts by approximately $5.9 million
or 1188% due to the increased food provided for students throughout the pandemic.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures - Required maintenance for
school facilities — Salaries increased from the original budgeted amounts by
approximately $13.2 million or 94% due to the additional expenditures for reopening
schools in the latter half of the school year.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures - Required maintenance for
school facilities — Cleaning, repair and maintenance services decreased from the
original budgeted amount by approximately $6.5 million or 56% as they were
reallocated to different account lines and repurposed as necessary in the current year.
The District originally budgeted an unusually high amount in the account line in the
event of any unexpectedly large enhanced sanitization costs as a result of the ongoing
pandemic.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Required maintenance for
school facilities — General supplies increased approximately $3.7 million or 179.5%
as more supplies were required at the schools due to COVID and with the ongoing
renovations to the Newark Vocational High School in the current year.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Custodial services —
Purchased professional and technical services increased approximately $2.6 million
or 162% as the District expected schools being opened in-person learning and for a
longer ongoing period.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Custodial services — Cleaning,
repair and maintenance services increased $3.1 million or 42% due to the additional
environmental remediation projects at District buildings in the 20/21 fiscal year.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Student Transportation
Services — Contracted Services (between home and sch.)-vendor decreased from the
original budgeted amount by approximately $2.8 million or 78% this decrease is a
result of school closures in the beginning of the school year due to COVID-19
significant funds were not needed in these budget lines and transportation and travel
was very limited. The funds were repurposed to cover overtime and extra pay for the
District staff and trades.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Student Transportation
Services — Contracted Services (special ed.)-vendor decreased from the original
budgeted amount by approximately $6.6 million or 32% this decrease is a result of
school closures in the beginning of the school year due to COVID-19 significant
funds were not needed in these budget lines and transportation and travel was very
limited. The funds were repurposed to cover overtime and extra pay for the District
staff and trades.
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The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Student Transportation
Services — Contracted Services (special ed.)-vendor decreased from the original
budgeted amount by approximately $6.2 million or 67% this decrease is a result of
school closures in the beginning of the school year due to COVID-19 significant
funds were not needed in these budget lines and transportation and travel was very
limited. The funds were repurposed to cover overtime and extra pay for the District
staff and trades.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Unallocated benefits —
employee benefits — Worker’s compensation decreased from the original budgeted
amounts by approximately $2.7 million or 30%. This was due to fewer on the job
injuries since less individuals were on-site at the District due to the Pandemic.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Unallocated benefits —
employee benefits — Other employment benefits increased from the original budgeted
amounts by approximately $6.8 million or 47%. This transfer to other employee
benefits was to cover benefits for trades and unions.

The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Facilities acquisition and
construction services increased from the original budgeted amounts by approximately
$6.8 million or 266% as funds were reallocated for capital building repairs,
renovations for additional classroom space, and construction services utilized in order
to continue renovations primarily on Newark Vocational High School and East Side
High School during the 20/21 fiscal year.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for those lines
where the modified budgeted amounts differ from the actual amounts by more than
$2,000,000 and 10%.

Revenues

Actual On-behalf TPAF pension and reimbursed social security contributions are
unbudgeted revenue sources. Consequently, actual revenues as well as the related
expenditures exceeded the final budgeted amount by approximately $129.1
million.

Miscellaneous Revenues were approximately $2.2 million or 33% more than
amount budgeted. This variance is due to an increase in fixed asset sales for
which no amounts were originally budgeted.

Extraordinary Aid amount received was approximately $2.9 million or 56% more
than the amount budgeted. The variance is due to an increase in the proration
percentage of aid received from 62.54% in 19/20 to 90.09% in 20/21.
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Expenditures

Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Instruction — Regular programs — Purchased
professional-educational services were less than the modified budget by
approximately $4.5 million or 237% as the District did not use the purchased
professional educational services as originally planned as the District shifted to
remote teaching during the 19/20 school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which
continued well into the 20/21 school year as schools were still closed for the majority
of the current school year, thus resulting in a decrease in educational services and
seminars provided utilized during the year.

Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Instruction — Regular programs — General
supplies were less than the modified budget by approximately $2.4 million or 22.4%
as the District used fewer supplies in the 20/21 school year due to the District shifting
to remote learning mid-way through the prior school year and continuing well into
the current school year because of the COVID-19 outbreak. Therefore, less physical
school supplies for regular instruction and learning was needed for approximately 7
months of the 20/21 school year.

Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Other support services — students — extra
services — Salaries were less than the modified budget by approximately 2.7 million
or 30% as less extra services (i.e. OT, PT, speech, etc.) costs were incurred in the
current year than originally anticipated due to the ongoing pandemic causing school
closures and students to be learning remote/virtual for much of the school year and
therefore not in person to receive such specialized services.

Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Student Transportation services — Contracted
services (special ed.) vendor were less than the modified budget by approximately
$2.3 million or 20% as the need for transportation services for students was greatly
diminished due to the ongoing pandemic halting travel and with much of the 20/21
school year being remote/virtual.

Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Unallocated benefits — employee benefits —
unemployment compensation was less than the modified budget by approximately $2
million or 100% due to the implementation of the new accounting standard GASB 84
for FY21 and a change in reporting compared to the prior year as a result. In line with
GASB 84, unemployment compensation funds do not meet the requirements of a
fiduciary fund and activity is now reported within the general fund; unemployment
payments are first paid using employee contributions and then board contributions are
applied to any remaining amounts owed if employee contributions have been
exhausted. Due to the fact that unemployment payments made by the District in the
current year did not exceed the accumulated employee contributions amount
available, no expenditures needed to be spent against board contributions

Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Facilities acquisition and construction services -
Construction services were less than the modified budget by approximately $4.7
million or 102% as less projects were ongoing or unable to start/continue than
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originally anticipated due to the COVID-19 outbreak causing schools to continue to
be closed for much of the 20/21 school year.

The above analysis is on a budgetary basis and does not include the results of encumbered
funds.

Capital Assets Administration

Capital Assets. As of June 30, 2021, the District has capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, of $680,564,815, including land, school buildings, machinery, equipment,
vehicles and construction in progress noted as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
01 020 2021 2020 021 2020

Non Depreciable:
Land § 645249 § 26452459 § 26450459 § 26452459
Construction in progress B339 233,378,058 BI3TIY 133,378,058
Deprecizble:
Buildings and building improvements 947,161,342 946,114,561 947,161,342 946,114,561
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 3,617,147 19114473 § 6006527 § 605907 2964274 25,173,544
Total capital assets 1,48,608,867 1,225,059,551 6,006,527 6,059,071 1,254,615,394 131,118,622
Accumulated Depreciation (568,943,817) (529,068,793) (5,106,762) (5,002,622) (574050,579)  (534,071415)
Total Capital Assets net of
Accumulated Depreciation § 679665050 §  695990,758 § 899765 § 1056449 § 680564815 § 697047207

e ——— e e— ——————— S ————eeeey  S———
I § _——_—— o —————————————

Additional detailed information on the Newark Board of Education’s capital assets cén be
found in Note 4 to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration and Long-Term Liabilities

The District’s long-term liabilities at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows for governmental
activities:

Governmental
Activities
2021 2020
Capital Lease Obligations $ 16,903,279 $ 19,727,452
Deferred Pension Liability 896,903 1,289,875
Compensated absences 41,547,411 40,749,326
Total long-term liabilities $ 59,347,593 3 61,766,653

The District also has a net pension liability of $243,567,255 and $264,901,511 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

Additional detailed information on the Newark Board of Education’s long-term liabilities can
be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements.



Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

e The District budgeted $22,305,0520f its 2021 unassigned fund balance to partially
fund the 2021/2022 operations, a decrease of approximately $42.9 million from the
prior year. The decrease was due to the District utilizing approximately $24.1 million
of fund balance to partially fund the 2020/2021 decrease in state aid.

e The tax levy remained consistent with the prior year, budgeting $138,314,942 for
both the 2020/21 and 2021/22 fiscal years.

e The District considered the continued effects of the COVID-19 pandemic,
potential state aid reductions and increases, and CARES Act and ARP grant
funding in preparing the District’s 2021-22 fiscal year budget.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2021-2022
fiscal year. The reduction and/or stabilization of state aid and the increase in students
attending charter schools has caused difficulty in balancing the District’s budgets and is
expected to be more difficult in the future years.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Newark Board of
Education’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the School Business
Administrator, 765 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102.
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Basic Financial Statements



Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the
District’s operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all governmental activities and business-type activities as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021.



Newark Board of Education

Statement of Net Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash held with fiscal agents
Internal balances

Accounts receivable
Inventories

Restricted:

Cash held with fiscal agents
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, depreciable, net
Total assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Pension deferrals
Total assets and deferred outflow of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Intergovernmental payables:

State

Federal
Accrued liabilities for insurance claims
Unearned revenue
Net pension liability
Current portion of long-term obligations
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Pension deferrals
Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Capital reserve
Unemployment compensation
Student activities
Scholarships
Excess surplus - current year
Excess surplus - prior year
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

A-1

June 30, 2021
Governmental Business-type
Activitics Activitics Total

$ 118,192,485 3 4042849 3 122,235,334
516,206 516,206
(36,428) 36,428 -
20,677,973 2,015,657 22,693,630
161,051 699,648 860,699

790,020 790,020
277,829,778 277,829,778
401,835,272 899,765 402,735,037
819,966,357 7,694,347 827,660,704
48,308,644 48,308,644
868,275,001 7,694,347 875,969,348
63,648,425 484,403 64,132,828
16,932,939 277,775 17,210,714
235,067 235,067

476,331 476,331

57,909 57,909
30,699,687 30,699,687
25,986,223 199,142 26,185,365
243,567,255 243,567,255
4,298,716 4,298,716
55,048,877 55,048,877
440,951,429 961,320 441,912,749
105,421,536 105,421,536
546,372,965 961,320 547,334,285
663,257,713 899,765 664,157,478
902,414 902,414
6,919,941 6,919,941
7,478,969 7,478,969
931,310 931,310
527,144 527,144
27,622,247 27,622,247
2,305,352 2,305,352
(388,043,054) 5,833,262 (382,209,792)

$ 321,902,036 $ 6,733,027 § 328,635,063

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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A-2
Newark Board of Education

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2021
Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and
Operating Capital Changes in Net Position
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities
Instruction s 581,529997 § 1,380,132 § 47,486,105 s (532,663,760) s (532,663,760)
Support services:
Attendance/social work 16,669,334 (16,669,334) (16,669,334)
Health services 13,920,319 (13,920,319 (13,920,319)
Support services 181,059,333 112,380,506 (68,678,827) (68,678,827)
Improvement of instruction 50,483,969 (50,483,969) (50,483,969)
Educational media services 2,963,367 (2,963,367) (2,963.367)
Instructional staf¥ training 272,804 (272,804) (272,804)
General edministration 10,152,991 (10,152,991) (10,152,991)
School administration 47,035,748 (47,035,748) (47,035,748)
Central services 12,282,917 (12,282917) (12,282917)
Administration information technology 11,165,742 (11,165,742) (11,165,742)
Operation and maintenance of plant services 138,029,908 $ 1,342,770 (136,687,138) (136,687,138)
Student transportation 18,857,268 (18,857,268) (18,857,268)
Special schools 3,161,416 (3,161,416) (3,161,416)
Charter schools 273,909,092 5,054,646 (268,854,446) (268,854,446)
Interest on long-term debt 161,522 (161,522) (161,522)
Total governmental activities 1,361,655,727 1,380,132 164,921,257 1,342,770 (1,194,011,568) (1,194,011,568)
Business-type activities
Food service 16,322,216 280 11,048,990 s (5,272,946) (5,272,946)
Regional day schoo! 5,572,403 6,396,899 824,496 824,496
Total business-type activities 21,894619 6,397,179 11,048,990 {4,448,450) (4,448,450)
Total primary government $ 1383550346 $ 7777311 _$ 175970247 S 1,342,770 (1,194,011,568) (4,448,450) (1,198,460,018)
General revenues and transfers:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 138,314,942 138,314,942
Federal sources - unrestricted 4,272,517 4,272,517
State sources - unrestricted 1,043,700,345 1,043,700,345
Interest earnings 223,265 223,265
Miscellaneous income 18,679,972 520,120 19,200,092
Transfers (5.419,766) 5,419,766 -
Total general revenues and transfers 1,199,771,275 5,939,886 1,205,711,161
Change in net position 5,759,707 1,491,436 7,251,143
Net Positi beginning (ret: ively adjusted - see Note 24) 316,142,329 5,241,591 321,383,920
Net Position—ending s 321,902,036 S 6,733,027 $ 328,635.063

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Newark Board of Education
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2021
Major Funds
Special Capital Toal
General Revenue Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fends
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents H 70,762,096 $ 15425265 $ 870335 $ 87057916
Accounts receivable:

State 6,725,149 13,509 1,856,764 8.595,422

Federal 8,292,082 8.292,082

Other 253,343 13,658 3,523,468 3.790.469

Interfund 2,667,439 394,032 3.061,471
Restricted Assets:

Cash held with fiscal agents 790.020 790.020
Total asscts $ M|408i027 $  24.138.546 S _7.040.807 $ 1 Ili287&
Liabilities 2nd Fund Balances
Liabilitics:

Accounts payable $ 33479,929 $ 57153506 $ 2306777 $ 41,502,212

Accrued Liabilities 16,518,505 414434 16,932.939

Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 6,575,530 6,575,530

U ! P claims payable 707,900 707,900

Intergovernmental paysbles:

State 476,331 476331
Federal 57,909 57909

Interfunds paysble 3,097,899 3.097.899

Other linbilitics 27,097 27,097

Uncamed revenue 25.478,788 507.435 25.986.223
Total lisbilities 57,308,961 32,142,968 s 95,364,040
Fund balznces:

Restricted for:

Excess surplus - curvent year 27,622,247 27.622.247
Excess surplus - prior year 2,305,352 2,305,352
Capital reserve 6,919,941 6,919,941
Capital projects 1,128,696 1,128,696
Student activities 931,310 931310
Scholarships 527,044 527,144
Unemployment compensation 7.478,969 7,478,969

Unassigned (deficit) (21.227443) ©.462.876) o (30690319)

Total fund balances (deficit) 23,099.066 (8.004,422) 1.128.696 16.223.340
Total libilities and fund balances $ 80|408|027 $ 24 138.546 $ 7040807 3 __111.587.380
Amounts reparted for governmental activities in the

statement of nel position (A-1) are diffesent because:

Total fund balances per above $ 16223340

Capital assets used in governmental activitics are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in she funds, The cost of the assets is

$1,248,608,867 and the accumulated depreciation is $568,943,817. 679,665.050

Deferred pension costs in govemtmental activitics are sot financial

tesources and are therefore not reported in the funds. (57,112.892)
Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period and

therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds. (243,567.255)
Accrued pension coatributions for the Junc 30, 2021 plan year end are ot

paid with current Y and are therefore not reported as &

liability in the funds, but ase included in accounts payable in the

government-nide statement of net pasition. (14.835,686)
Internal scrvice funds are used by the District to charge the costs of the

h and seif-i to the individual funds. The assets
2nd lisbilitics of the internal service funds are inchuded with governmental
activitics 1112139
Lisbilities, including capital leases payable, deferred pensian liability and
compensated absences are not due 2nd payable in the current period and
therefore ase not reported as tiabilities in the funds. (59.347.593)
Accrued mnterest on long-term dett is not due and payable in the current
period and therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds. (235,067

Net position of governmenta! activitics

See accompanymg noles io basic financial statements.
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Newark Board of Education
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year ended June 30, 2021
Major Funds
Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Local sources:
Local tax levy $ 138314942 $ 138,314,942
Tuition 910,055 910,055
Interest on investments 175,993 s 1,506 177,499
Miscellaneous 6481034 § 1,458,746 7.939.780
Total local sources 145,882,024 1,458,746 1,506 147,342,276
State sources 962,176,945 90,069,691 1,342,770 1,053,589,406
Federal sources 4,272,517 73,862,897 78,135414
Total revenues 1,112,331,486 165,391,334 1,344,276 1,279,067,096
Expenditures:
Current expenditures:
Instruction 243,770,574 44,870,484 288,641,058
Support services:
Instruction 48,194,350 48,194,350
Attendance/social work 11,383,704 11,383,704
Health services 9,533,526 9,533,526
Support services 43,780,296 106,414,479 150,194,775
Improvement of instruction 31,891,718 31,891,718
Educational media services / school library 2,045,670 2,045,670
Instructional staff training 257,324 257,324
General administration 8,258,269 8,258,269
School administration 24,442,142 24,442,142
Central services 9,751,090 9,751,090
Administration information technology 9,802,758 9,802,758
Required maintenance of plant services 41,615,090 41,615,090
Custodial services 56,970,852 56,970,852
Security 13,095,802 13,095,802
Student transportation 17,175,435 17,175,435
Unallocated benefits 142,681,823 142,681,823
On-behalf TPAF pension, medical and disability contributions 105,253,682 105,253,682
Reimbursed TPAF social security
contributions 23,828,916 23,828,916
Special schools-current 2,233,995 2,233,995
Charter schools-current 269,122,786 4,786,306 273,909,092
Capital ouday 13,924,714 13,924,714
Debt service:
Principal 2,614,172 2,614,172
Interest 399.185 399,185
Total expenditures 1,118,103.159 156,071,269 13,924,714 1,288,099.142
(Deficiency) excess of revenues (under) over expenditures (5,771,673) 9,320,065 (12,580,438) (9,032,046)
Other financing sources (uses):
City of Newark debt issuance 12,244,704 12,244,704
Transfers in 14,310,545 2,981,117 17,291,662
Transfers out (8.481.117) (14,228,805) (1,506) (22,711,428)
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,829,428 (11,247,688) 12,243,198 6,824,938
Net change in fund balance 57,755 (1,927,623) (337,240) (2,207,108)
Fund balances (deficit), July 1 (retroactively adjusted - see Note 24) 23,041,311 (6,076,799) 1,465,936 18,430,448
Fund balances (deficit), June 30 S 23.099.066 $ (8.004422) § 1.128.696 $ 16223340

The reconciliation of the fund balances of govemmental funds to the net position of governmental activities in the statement of
activities is p d in the panying schedule (B-3).

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



Newark Board of Education
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2021

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) $ (2,207,108)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital additions are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which depreciation expense and the loss on disposal exceeded capital additions in
the period.
Depreciation expense $ (40,743,768)
Capital additions 24,429,720
Loss on disposal of capital assets (11,660)

(16,325,708)
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities. 2,824,173
Internal services funds are used by the District to charge the costs of the warehouse and self-insurance programs
to the individual funds. The activities of these funds are included in the Statement of Activities. (184,371)
Repayments of deferred pension liabilities are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities. 392,972
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Pension expense 8,928,935
In the statement of activities, interest on long term debt is accrued, regardless of when due. In the governmental
funds, interest is reported when due. 27,362
Change in the liability for health benefit liability is not due and payable in the current period due to two month lag. 13,101,537
In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, €.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). (798,085)
Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2) $ 5,759,707

See accompanying notes 1o basic financial statements.
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B-4

Newark Board of Education
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021
Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activity
Major Enterprise Funds Internal
Food Regional Day Service
Service School Totals Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,017,744 § 3,025105 $ 4042849 $ 31,134,569
Cash held with fiscal agents 516,206
Accounts receivable:
Federal 1,576,394 1,576,394
Interfund 36,428 36,428
Other 439,263 439,263
Inventories 699,648 699,648 161,051
Total current assets 3,330,214 3,464,368 6,794,582 31,811,826
Capital assets:
Machinery and equipment 5,832,718 173,809 6,006,527
Accumulated depreciation (5,029,624) (77,138) (5,106,762)
Total capital assets, net 803,094 96,671 899,765
Total assets 4,133,308 3,561,039 7,694,347 31,811,826
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 373,510 110,893 484,403
Accrued liabilities 230,713 47,062 271,775 30,699,687
Uneamed revenue 199,142 199,142
Total cutrent liabilities 803,365 157,955 961,320 30,699,687
Net Position
Investment in capital assets 803,094 96,671 899,765
Restricted 327,289
Unrestricted 2,526,849 3,306,413 5,833,262 784,850
Total net position $ 3,329,943 $ 3,403,084 $ 6,733,027 § 1,112,139

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



Newark Board of Education
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2021
Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activity
Major Enterprise Funds Internal
Focd Regicnal Day Futures After Service
Service School School Program Totals Funds
Operating revenues:
Local sources:
Daily food sales - non-reimbursable programs $ 280 $ 280
Tuition $ 6,396,899 6,396,899
Miscellaneous 517,951 3,004 520,955
Total local sources 518,231 6,399,903 6,918,134
Services provided to other funds $ 8734005
Total operating revenues 518,231 6,399,903 6,918,134 8,734,005
Operating expenses:
Salaries 7,441,336 3,762,510 11,203,846 855,646
Employee benefits 3,289,585 1,393,382 4,682,967 335,166
Purchased professional services 362,442 270,656 633,098 5,000
Other purchased services 256,480 256,480
Energy 39,772 39,772
Transportation 969 969
Supplies and materials 1,812,688 79,432 1,892,120 7,100
Insurance 7,761,230
Depreciation 144,289 11,560 155,849
Cost of sales - reimbursable program 3,012,552 3,012,552
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable program 79 79
Miscellaneous 2,765 14,122 16,887
Total operating expenses 16,322,216 5,572,403 21,894,619 8,964,142
Operating (loss) income (15,803,985) 827,500 (14,976 ,485) (230,137)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources: :
State school lunch program 4,250 4,250
Federal sources:
Fresh fruit and vegetable program 220,966 220,966
School breakfast program 174,655 174,655
National school lunch program 278,212 278,212
Food donation program 2,297,579 2,297,579
Summer food service program 7,116,286 7,116,286
Summer Food Service Program (COVID-19 Emergency) 957,042 957,042
Investment income 45,766
Loss on disposal of capital assets (835) (835)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 11,048,155 11,048,155 45,766
{Loss) income before transfers (4,755,830) 827,500 (3,928,330) (184,371)
Transfers in - board contribution 5,500,000 5,500,000
Transfers out $ (80,234) (80,234)
5,500,000 (80,234) 5,419,766
Change in net position 744,170 827,500 (80,234) 1,491,436 (184,371)
Total net position - beginning 2,585,773 2,575,584 80,234 5,241,591 1,296,510
Total net position - ending $ 3329943 § 3403084 § - $ 6733027 § 1,112,139

et T g meemmeam—————— et e

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Newark Board of Education
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

B-6

Year ended June 30, 2021
Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activity
Major Enterprise Funds Internal
Food Regional Day Futures After Service
Service School School Program Totals Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from services provided $ 8,734,005
Receipts from customers $ 550,131 $ 6,800,046 $ 2,350,177
Payments to employees (7,238,283) (3,746,697) (10,984,980) (855,646)
Payments for employee benefits (3,289,585) (1,393,382) (4,682,967) (335,166)
Payments to suppliers (6,445,223) (423,515) (6,868,738) 26,911
Payments for insurance (7,554,712)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (16,422,960) 1,236,452 (15,186,508) 15,392
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements 8,762,264 8,762,264
Cash paid to other funds (231,721) (231,721)
Cash received from food donation program 2,394,883 2,394,883
Cash received from board contribution 5,500,000 5,500,000
Transfers to other funds $ (80,234) (80,234)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 16,425,426 (80,234) 16,345,192
Cash flows from investing activity-
Cash received from investments 45,766
Net cash provided by investing activity 45,766
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,466 1,236,452 (80,234) 1,158,684 61,158
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,015,278 1,788,653 80,234 2,884,165 31,073,411
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1017744 § 3025105 § - 3 4,042,849  § 31,134,569
Reconciliation of operating (loss) income to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activites:
Operating (loss) income $ (15,803,985) $ 827,500 $ (14976485) $ (230,137)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 144,289 11,560 155,849
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable - other 31,900 400,143 432,043
(Increase) decrease in inventory (287,824) (287,824) 40,060
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (710,393) (18,564) (728,957) 956,842
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 203,053 15,813 218,866 (751,373)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (16422960) $ 1236452 $ - 8§ (15,186,508) $ 15,392

Non-cash from non capital financing activities

The District received $2,394,883 of food commodities from the U.S. Department of Agriculture for the year ended June 30, 2021.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Newark Board of Education (“the District”) have been prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.
A. Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which
the primary government is financially accountable, and c) other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability.
A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal
entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint
a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on
that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits
to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A primary government
may also be financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent
on it.

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Newark Board of Education, in
Newark, New Jersey. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal government
sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities.

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity,
as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and

Financial Reporting Standards.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement

of activities) report information on all of the activities of the District. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,

46



Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers, students
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) requires that
all funds be reported as major, as it is considered important for public interest and to promote
consistency among District financial reporting in the State of New Jersey.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers all revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures
related to compensated absences, net pension liability, and deferred pension liability and certain
legal settlements, are recorded only when payment is due.

47



Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year.
All other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when the District receives
cash.

The District has reported the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional
equipment, which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one combined special revenue fund, which
includes the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets (other
than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived primarily from
state aid and City funding.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds (Food Service and Regional Day School) The food service fund accounts for
all revenues and expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges. The Regional Day School fund accounts for all
revenues and expenses in the operation of the school similar to a private business enterprise. The
District has an additional proprietary fund, the Futures After School Program fund. The Futures
After School Program fund accounts for all revenues and expenses in the operation of the school
and after-school program, respectively, similar to a private business enterprise. The Futures After
School Program is no longer in place at the District as of July 1, 2018.
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Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Internal Service Funds include the following:

Self-Insurance Fund. The self-insurance fund is used to cover the self-insured limits of the
various insurance policies for all funds.

Warehouse Fund: The warehouse fund provides goods to other departments. The purpose of
this fund is to achieve a level of efficiency and economy by purchasing items in bulk and
responding expeditiously to the needs of the schools and departments.

As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) fees charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the District enterprise funds are charges for sales of food, tuition
and program fees. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Revenues and other governmental fund financial resources should be recognized in the
accounting period in which they become both measurable and available. When an asset is
recorded in governmental fund financial statements, but the revenue is not available the
government should report a deferred inflow of resources until such time the revenue becomes
available.

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount
voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established
payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “account receivable.”
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Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the assessment of properties and the City Tax
Collector is responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and taxes are levied on
January 1; taxes are due February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1. Unpaid taxes are considered
delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject to lien.

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special
revenue funds. The budgets are submitted to the County Office and the Commissioner for
approval. Budgets, except for the special revenue fund which is prepared using a non-GAAP
budgetary basis, are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of details as established pursuant to the minimum
chart of accounts referenced in N.J.LA.C. 6A:23. The District must approve all budget
amendments. The District did make transfers during the year which are identified on schedules
B-5, C-1, C-1a and C-2. Some of the transfers made were in significant amounts, but all were in
the normal course of operations. Budgetary transfers were made during the current year in
accordance with statutory guidelines. The over-expenditures related to on-behalf payments in
the general fund are due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by the
State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are offset by related revenues and
as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments
for budgetary purposes only and the accounting for the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

50



Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E. Cash, Cash equivalents and investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit, money market
accounts and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools” and GASB
Statement No. 72 “Fair Value Measurement and Application.” The District classifies certificates of
deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months
from the date of purchase, as investments and are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at
fair value.

F. Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

G. Inventories

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are
recorded as an expense during the year of purchase. Inventories of the enterprise and internal
service funds are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

The enterprise fund used the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method to account for inventories and
inventories are valued at cost. Warehouse inventories are valued using average costs.

At June 30, 2021, the unused Food Donation Program commodities of $199,142 are reported as
unearned revenue in the Food Service Enterprise Fund.

H. Tuition
Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. Tuition charges for

the 2020-2021 fiscal year were based on rates established by the receiving District. These rates
are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.
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I. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, building and building improvements, machinery and
equipment and construction in progress, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the Government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or through
estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. Land was valued at
assessed value based upon information received from the City of Newark. Donated capital assets
are valued at their acquisition value on the date of acquisition.

The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the assets lives are not capitalized.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the
District are depreciated using the straight line method. The following estimated useful lives are
used to compute depreciation:

Years
Machinery and equipment 2-20
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Vehicles 5-10

J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions. In addition to
liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category, deferred amounts related to pensions.
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K. Accrued Salaries and Wages

Certain District employees who provided services to the District over the ten-month academic
year have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve-month year.
New Jersey statutes require that these earned but not disbursed amounts be retained in a separate
bank account. As of June 30, 2021, the amount earned by these employees but not disbursed was
$9,228,013 and is included in accrued liabilities in the General fund.

L. Compensated Absences

A liability for compensated absences that is attributable to services already rendered and that is
not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. The District uses the “vesting method” for
estimating its accrued sick and vacation leave liability.

District employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District’s existing
collective bargaining agreements. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for
accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with
the employee after one year of service.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District is recorded in the Government-wide
financial statements and amounted to $41,547,411 at June 30, 2021. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured at June 30, 2021, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

M. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and capital project funds represents cash which has
been received, but is not yet earned and certain outstanding encumbrances in the special revenue
fund. Unearned revenue in the food service enterprise fund represents the value of unused
donated food commodities.

N. Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position, where
applicable.
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O. Fund Balances

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(“GASB 54”) established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and
classified into the following five categories, as defined below:

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not
in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Assets included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories,
long-term receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds.

Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling
legislation.

Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
imposed by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making
authority. The District’s highest level of decision-making authority is the State
Executive Superintendent and formal action is taken by resolution at publicly held
meetings. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the
State Executive Superintendent revises or changes the specified use by taking the
same action (resolution) taken to originally commit these funds.

Assigned — amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed
by either the State Executive Superintendent or Business Administrator, to whom the
State Executive Superintendent has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be
used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds.

Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications
in the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been
assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to
specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that
reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In the other governmental funds,
if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative
unassigned fund balance.
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted
fund balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally,
unassigned funds.

Of the $23,099,066 fund balance in the General Fund, $19,259,703 of assigned for year-end
encumbrances and the unassigned portion of ($40,487,146) are included in the unassigned deficit
of ($21,227,443), $6,919,941 has been restricted for capital reserve, $7,478,969 has been
restricted for unemployment compensation, $27,622,247 has been restricted for excess surplus —
current year, and $2,305,352 has been restricted for prior year excess surplus — which has been
designated for subsequent year’s expenditures.

The special revenue fund deficit fund balance in the amount of $8,004,422 includes the restricted
balances for student activities and scholarships in the amount of $931,310 and 527,144,
respectively, the remaining unassigned deficit balance of $(9,462,876) is due to preschool
education funds not being recognized as revenue in the financial statements due to the State’s
deferral of the last two state aid payments. The capital projects fund balance in the amount of
$1,128,696 is restricted and available for use on capital projects in future years.

P. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources and liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire
the capital assets. Net positions are reported as restricted in the government-wide and fund
financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

Q. Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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R. On-Behalf Payments

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New
Jersey for social security contributions and post-retirement pension, medical and long-term
disability benefits for certified staff members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity
Fund. Additionally, revenues and expenses related to on-behalf pension and OPEB contributions in
the government-wide financial statements have been increased by $129,082,598 to adjust for the full
accrual basis expense incurred by the State of New Jersey during the most recent measurement
period. The amounts are not required to be included in the District’s annual budget.

S. Regional Day School

The Regional Day School is operated by the District under a contract with the New Jersey State
Department of Education. The Regional Day School delivers educational services to approximately
one hundred students who are severely emotionally disturbed or multiple handicapped.

The funding for the Regional Day School is provided by tuition payments from the local Districts
who send their children to the Regional Day School. The District assumes the financial control and
business management supervision of the School, as well as oversees the total educational program of
the School. The School has its own principal and instructional staff as well as support staff that are
employees of the District. The School building is owned by the State of New Jersey.

All expenses for the Regional Day School are funded through tuition and not through the local tax
rate of the City of Newark.

The Regional Day School budget is developed annually in conjunction with the School principal
and officials from the District administration. Local school districts who anticipate sending
children to the Regional Day School for the following school year are notified in advance of the
anticipated tuition costs so that their own budgets may be properly constructed to reflect the
tuition costs.

T. Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fund balance - excess surplus
is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement
and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New lJersey school districts are required to reserve a
general fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they do not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund
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balance at June 30, 2021 was $27,622,247, which will be appropriated in the 2022/23 budget and
$2,305,352 of prior year excess surplus which was appropriated in the 2021/22 budget.

U. GASB Pronouncements
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Principles

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. This Statement establishes standards
of accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Management has not
determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period in June 2018. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Management has not determined
the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019. This Statement
establishes a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers to eliminate diversity
in practice. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2021. Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the
financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
in May 2020. This Statement provides guidance on accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. Management has not determined the
impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

V. Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June
30, 2021 through March 1, 2022 the date that the financial statements were available for
issuance. The effect of those events and transactions that provide additional pertinent
information about conditions that exists at the balance sheet and statement of net position date,
have been recognized in the accompanying financial statements. The following occurred
subsequent to June 30, 2021. In July 2021, the District issued $93,905,000 school energy savings
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obligation refunding bonds that refunded the 2015 ESIP lease and the 2018 ESIP lease that had
principal balances of $8,754,000 and 4,050,000, respectively, as of June 30, 2021.

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the Government-
wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term
liabilities, including capital leases payable, other pension liability and compensated absences
payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
The details of this $59,347,593 difference are as follows:

Other pension liability $ 896,903
Capital leases payable 16,903,279
Compensated absences 41,547,411

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental funds to
arrive at net position — governmental activities $ 59,347,593

3. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools and Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The District classifies certificates of deposit,
which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from
the date of purchase, as investments and are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair
value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. Additionally, the District has
adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories
protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
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(“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds
on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJ.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in
a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public
depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and
savings banks, the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge
collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of
collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay
the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made
in public depositories. School districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New
Jersey Cash Management Fund (“NJCMF”) and the New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management
Fund (“NJ ARM”).

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the
capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at
least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less
than $25,000,000.
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The District’s cash and cash equivalents are classified below to inform financial statement users
about the extent to which the District’s deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit
risk.

Operating cash accounts are held in the District’s name by several commercial banking
institutions. At June 30, 2021, the District’s carrying amount of deposits was $122,235,334 and
the bank balance was $150,791,184. Of the bank balance on June 30, 2021, $1,133,731 of the
District’s cash deposits were secured by federal depository insurance. The New Jersey GUDPA
covered the bank balance of $122,048,112. $27,609,341 held in the District agency accounts are
not covered by GUDPA. In addition, the District has a bank balance of $1,468,422 of funds held
by fiscal agents in the name of the District at June 30, 2021.

GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the District disclose whether its deposits are exposed to
custodial credit risk (risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty, the District would not be
able to recover the value of its deposit or investment). Deposits are considered to be exposed to
custodial credit risk if they are: uncollateralized (securities are not pledged to the depositor),
collateralized with the securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the
name of the District.

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than
depositing all of its funds in banks covered by GUDPA. At least five percent of the District’s
deposits were fully collateralized by funds held by the financial institution, but not in the name
of the District. Due to the nature of GUDPA, further information is not available regarding the
full amount that is collateralized.

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United
States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal
National Mortgage Agency or of any United States Bank for Cooperatives which have a
maturity date not greater than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the School District.
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d. New Jersey Cash Management Fund and New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management
Fund.

The District did not have any investments held at June 30, 2021 or during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021.

4. Capital Assets

The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in capital
assets for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Beginning Dispositions/ Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 26,452,459 $ 26,452,459
Construction in progress — SDA 195,717,240 $ 931,294 196,648,534
Construction in progress — District 37,660,818 18.114,748 $ (1,046,781 ) 542728,785
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 259,830,517 19,046,042 (1,046,781) 277,829,778
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and building improvements 946,114,561 1,046,781 947,161,342
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 19.114,473 5,383,678 §$ (880,404) 23,617,747
Total capital assets being depreciated 965,229,034 5,383,678 (880,404) 1,046,781 970,779,089
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and building improvements 515,935,548 38,837,492 554,773,040
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 13,133.245 1.906,276 (868,744) 14,170,777
Total accumulated depreciation 529,068,793 40,743,768 (868,744) - 568,943,817
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 436,160,241 35,360,090 11,660 1,046,781 401,835,272
Governmental activities capital assets,net _$ 695,990,758 3§ (16,314,048) $ (11,660) $ - § 679,665,050
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Depreciation expense related to governmental activities was charged to functions/programs of
the District for the year ended June 30, 2021 as follows:

Amount
Current:
Instruction $ 17,363,711
Support Services:
Attendance / Social Work 684,807
Health services 573,506
Support services 9,035,232
Improvement of instructional services 1,918,503
Educational media services / school library 123,061
Instructional staff training 15,480
General administration 496,791
School administration 1,470,360
Central services 586,594
Administration information technology 589,702
Operation and maintenance of plant 6,718,412
Student transportation 1,033,219
Special schools 134,390

340,743,768

The District acquired capital assets through capital leases for energy conservation equipment for
several schools located in the territorial boundaries governed by the school district. The
depreciation expense on assets acquired with capital lease proceeds is included in the
depreciation expense above. The net book value of the capital assets held under these capital
leases as of June 30, 2021 is as follows:

62



Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2021

4. Capital Assets (continued)

Balance Balance
June 30, 2020 Increases June 30, 2021

Capita